

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL

OFFICIAL RECORDS

THIRTY-THIRD SESSION

3-18 April 1962

RESOLUTIONS

SUPPLEMENT No. 1

UNITED NATIONS

AFRICA

CAMEROUN: LIBRAIRIE DU PEUPLE AFRICAIN La Gérante, B.P. 1197, Yaoundé.

ETHIOPIA: INTERNATIONAL PRESS AGENCY P. O. Box 120, Addis Ababa.

GHANA: UNIVERSITY BOOKSHOP University College of Ghana, Legon, Accra.

MOROCCO: CENTRE DE DIFFUSION DOCUMENTAIRE DU B.E.P.I., 8, rue Michaux-Bellaire. Rabat,

SOUTH AFRICA: VAN SCHAIK'S BOOK STORE (PTY) LTD. Church Street, Box 724, Pretoria.

UNITED ARAB REPUBLIC: LIBRAIRIE "LA RENAISSANCE D'ÉGYPTE" 9 Sh. Adly Pasha, Cairo.

ASIA

BURMA: CURATOR, GOVT. BOOK DEPOT

CAMBODIA: ENTREPRISE KHMÈRE DE LIBRAIRIE Imprimerie & Papeterie Sarl, Phnom-Penh.

CEYLON: LAKE HOUSE BOOKSHOP Assoc. Newspapers of Ceylon, P. O. Box 244, Colombo.

CHINA:

THE WORLD BOOK COMPANY, LTD. 99 Chung King Road, 1st Section, Taipeh. Taiwan.

THE COMMERCIAL PRESS, LTD. 211 Honan Road, Shanghai.

HONG KONG: THE SWINDON BOOK COMPANY 25 Nathan Road, Kowloon.

INDIA:

ORIENT LONGMANS

Calcutta, Bombay, Madras, New Delhi and Hyderabad.

OXFORD BOOK & STATIONERY COMPANY New Delhi and Calcutta.

P. VARADACHARY & COMPANY

INDONESIA: PEMBANGUNAN, LTD. Gunung Sahari 84, Djakarta.

JAPAN: MARUZEN COMPANY, LTD.

6 Tori-Nichome, Nihonbashi, Tokyo. KOREA, REPUBLIC OF: EUL-YOO PUBLISHING CO., LTD., 5, 2-KA, Chongno, Seoul.

PAKISTAN:

THE PAKISTAN CO-OPERATIVE BOOK SOCIETY

Dacca, East Pakistan. PUBLISHERS UNITED, LTD.

THOMAS & THOMAS Karachi.

PHILIPPINES: ALEMAR'S BOOK STORE 769 Rizal Avenue, Manila.

SINGAPORE: THE CITY BOOK STORE, L.D.

Collyer Quay.

THAILAND: PRAMUAN MIT, LTD. 55 Chakrawat Road, Wat Tuk, Bangkok.

VIET-NAM, REPUBLIC OF: LIBRAIRIE-PAPETERIE

XUAN THU, 185, rue Tu-do, B.P. 283, Saigon.

EUROPE

AUSTRIA:

GEROLD & COMPANY Graben 31, Wien, 1.

B. WÜLLERSTORFF

Markus Sittikusstrasse 10, Salzburg.

BELGIUM: AGENCE ET MESSAGERIES

DE LA PRESSE, S. A. 14-22, rue du Persil, Bruxclies.

CZECHOSLOVAKIA: ČESI OSI OVENSKÝ

Národní Třída 9, Praha L DENMARK: EJNAR MUNKSGAARD, LTD. Nørregade 6, København, K.

FINLAND: AKATEEMINED KIRJAKAUPPA 2 Keskuskatu, Helsinki

FRANCE: ÉDITIONS A. PEDONI 13, rue Soufflot, Paris (V^o).

GERMANY, FEDERAL REPUBLIC OF:

GERMANY, FEDERAL REPUBLIC OF:
R. EISENSCHMIDT
Schwanthaler Str. 59, Frankfurt Main
ELWERT UND MEURER
Hauptstrasse 101, Berlin Schoneberg
ALEXANDER HORN
Spiegelgasse 9, Wiesbader
W. E. SAAREACH

Gertrudenstrasse 30, Köln (1).

GREECE: KAUFFMANN BOOKSHOP 28 Stadion Street, Athens

ICELAND: BÓKAVERZLU I SIGFÚSAR EYMUNDSSONAR H. F. Austurstraeti 18, Reykjavís

IRELAND: STATIONERY DEFICE

ITALY: LIBRERIA COMMISSIONARIA SANSONI, Via Gino Capponi 26, Firetze, and Via D.A. Azuni 15/A, Forna

LUXEMBOURG: LIBRAIRIE J. TRAUSCH-

SCHUMMER, Place du Théâtre, Luxembourg.

NETHERLANDS: N.V. MARTINUS NUHOFF Lange Voorhout 9, 's-Gravenhage.

NORWAY: JOHAN GRUNDT TANUM Karl Johansgate, 41, Oslo.

PORTUGAL: LIVRARIA RODRIGUES Y CIA. 186 Rua Aurea, Lisboa.

SPAIN:

LIBRERIA BOSCH 11 Renda Universidad, Barcelona. LIBRERIA MUNDI-PRENSA Castello 37, Madrid.

SWEDEN: C. E. FRITZE'S KUNGL, HOVBOK-HANDEL A-B Fredsgatan 2, Stockholn:.

SWITZERLAND:

LIBRAIRIE PAYOT, S. A Lausanne, Genève. HANS RAUNHARDT

Kirchgasse 17, Zürich 1 TURKEY: LIBRAIRIE HACHET (E

469 Istiklal Caddesi, Beyoglu, Istanbul.

UNION OF SOVIET SOCIALIST REPUBLICS:

MEZHDUNARODNAYA KNYIGA Serolenskaya Ploshchad, Moskva

UNITED KINGDOM: H. M. STATIONERY

OFFICE, P. O. Box 569, London, S.F. I (and HMSO branct es in Balfast, Birmingham, Bristol, Cardiff, Edinburgh, Manchester).

YUGOSLAVIA:

CANKARJEVA ZALOŽBA Ljubljana, Slovenia. DRŽAVNO PREDUZEĆE

Jugoslovenska Knjiga, Terazije 27/11, Beograd.

PROSVJETA 5, Trg Bratstva i Jedinstva, Zagreb. PROSVETA PUBLISHING HOUSE Import-Export Division, P. O. Box 559, Terazije 16/1, Beograd.

LATIN AMERICA

ARGENTINA: EDITORIAL SUDAMERICANA, S. A. Alsma 500, Buenos Aires.

BOLIVIA: LIBRERIA SELECCIONES Casilla 972, La Paz.

BRAZIL: LIVRARIA AGIR Roa Mexico 98-8, Caixa Postai 3291, Rio de Janeiro.

CHILE:

EDITORIAL DEL PACIFICO Abumada 57, Santiago.

LIBRERIA IVENS Capilla 205, Santiago.

COLOMBIA: LIBRERIA BUCHHOLZ Av. Jiménez de Quesada 8-40, Bogotá.

COSTA RICA: IMPRENTA Y LIBRERIA TREJOS Apartado 1313, San José.

CUBA: LA CASA BELGA O'Reilly 455, La Habana.

DOMINICAN REPUBLIC: LIBRERIA DOMINICANA Mercedes 49, Santo Domingo.

ECUADOR: LIBRERIA CIENTIFICA Casilla 362, Guayaquit.

EL SALVADOR: MANUEL NAVAS Y CIA. 1a. Avenida sur 37, San Salvador.

GUATEMALA: SOCIEDAD ECONOMICA-

FINANCIERA, 6a. Av. 14-33, Guatemala City.

HAITI: LIBRAIRIE "À LA CARAVELLE"

Port-au-Prince. HONDURAS: LIBRERIA PANAMERICANA

Legucigatoa.

MEXICO: EDITORIAL HERMES, S. A. Ignacio Mariscal 41, México, D. F.

PANAMA: JOSE MENENDEZ Agencia Internacional de Publicaciones, Apartado 2052, Av. 8A, sur 21-58, Panamá.

PARAGUAY: AGENCIA DE LIBRERIAS DE SALVADOR NIZZA Calle Pte. Franco No. 39-43, Asunción.

PERU: LIERERIA INTERNACIONAL DEL PERU, S. A. Casilla 1417, Lima.

URUGUAY: REPRESENTACION DE EDITORIALES, PKOF. H. D'ELIA Pluza Cagancha 1342, 1º piso, Montevideo.

VENEZUELA: LIBRERIA DEI ESTE, Av. Miranda, No. 52, Edf. Galipán, Caracas.

MIDDLE EAST

FRAQ: MACKENZIE'S BOOKSHOP

Baghdad.

ISRAFL: BLUMSTEIN'S BOOKSTORES 35 Allenby Rd. and 48 Nachlat Benjamin St., Tel Aviv.

JORDAN: JOSEPH I. BAHOUS & CO. Dar-ul-Kutub, Box 66, Amman.

LEBANON: KHAYAT'S COLLEGE BOOK COOPERATIVE, 92-94, rue Bliss, Beirut.

NORTH AMERICA

UNITED NATIONS, New York

CANADA: THE QUEEN'S PRINTER Ottawa, Ontario,

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA: SALES SECTION,

OCEANIA

AUSTRALIA: MELBOURNE UNIVERSITY PRESS 369 Lonsdate Street, Melbourne, C.1.

NEW ZEALAND: UNITED NATIONS ASSOCIATION OF NEW ZEALAND, C.P.O. 1011, Wellington.

[62E1]

Orders and inquiries from countries where sales agencies have not yet been established may be sent to: Sales Section, United Nations, New York, U.S.A., or to Sales Section, United Nations, Palais des Nations, Geneva, Switzerland.

> Price: \$U.S. 0.35; 2/6 stg.: Sw. fr. 1.50 (or equivalent in other currencies)

UNITED NATIONS CORRIGENDUM



ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL

Thirty-third Session
OFFICIAL RECORDS

Supplement No. 1 (E/3610) July 1962

NEW YORK

RESOLUTIONS

Page v:

 $\frac{\mathrm{For}}{\mathrm{Fund}}$ 10. United Nations Children's Fund $\frac{\mathrm{read}}{\mathrm{read}}$ 11. United Nations Children's Fund. Renumber the remaining items accordingly.



ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL OFFICIAL RECORDS THIRTY-THIRD SESSION 3-18 April 1962

RESOLUTIONS

SUPPLEMENT No. 1

UNITED NATIONS

New York, 1962

NOTE

Symbols of United Nations documents are composed of capital letters combined witch figures. Mention of such a symbol indicates a reference to a United Nations document.

The arabic and roman numerals identifying each resolution indicate, respectively, the number of the resolution and the number of the session at which it was adopted.

The resolutions of the Economic and Social Council are numbered in the order of their adoption. A check list of the resolutions adopted by the Council during its thirty-third session appears at the end of this volume.

E/3610

CONTENTS

Agenda for the thirty-third session	Page V
Resolutions adopted by the Council during its thirty-third session (864 (XXXIII) - 878 (XXXIII))	
Economic questions	
866 (XXXIII). Reports of the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the International Finance Corporation and the International Development Association (item 5)	
Resolution of 5 April 1962	1
867 (XXXIII). Creation of the Latin American Institute for Economic and Social Planning (item 19)	
Resolution of 5 April 1962	l
868 (XXXIII). Report of the International Monetary Fund (item 4) Resolution of 6 April 1962	i
870 (XXXIII). Nature, scope and location of the conference on international travel and tourism (item 9)	•
Resolution of 9 April 1962	ı
871 (XXXIII). Progress reports of the Committee of Experts for Further Work on the Transport of Dangerous Goods, and the Group of Experts on Explosives (item 9) Resolution of 10 April 1962	2
872 (XXXIII). Report of the Committee for Industrial Development (item 6) Resolution of 10 April 1962	
873 (XXXIII). Industrial development activities of the United Nations system (item 6) Resolution of 10 April 1962	3
874 (XXXIII). Establishment of an African development bank (item 20)	3
Resolution of 12 April 1962	3
Resolution of 13 and 18 April 1962	4
876 (XXXIII). Water Resources Development Centre (item 8) Resolution of 16 April 1962	4
	4
877 (XXXIII). Work in the field of non-agricultural resources (item 8) Resolution of 16 April 1962	4
878 (XXXIII). Procedures and arrangements for the World Food Programme (item 7) Resolution of 18 April 1962	5
Social questions	
-	
869 (XXXIII). United Nations Children's Fund (item 11) Resolution of 9 April 1962	5

CONTENTS (continued)

	Pag
Other questions	
864 (XXXIII). Non-governmental organizations: applications and re-applications for consultative status (item 12)	
Resolution of 4 April 1962	6
865 (XXXIII). Revision of the Agreement between the United Nations and the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization (item 18)	
Resolution of 4 April 1962	•
Other decisions taken by the Council during its thirty-third session	
Election of officers of the Council for 1962	7
Compendium of extracts from resolutions of the General Assembly and the Economic and Social Council involving principles of international economic co-operation.	-
Election of members of the functional commissions of the Council	•
Election of members of the Governing Council of the Special Fund	;
Election of six additional members of the Technical Assistance Committee	
Election of members of the Executive Board of the United Nations Children's Fund	
Confirmation of members of the functional commissions of the Council Establishment of a committee to consider candidates for election to the Permanent	
Central Opium Board	
Date of the meeting of the Technical Assistance Committee	
Provisional agenda for the thirty-fourth session	
Ouestion of representation at the thirty-fourth session of the Council	1
Financial implications of actions of the Council	l

AGENDA FOR THE THIRTY-THIRD SESSION *

adopted by the Council at its 1187th meeting, on 3 April 1962

- 1. Election of President and Vice-Presidents for 1962.
- 2. Adoption of the agenda.
- 3. Question of a declaration on international economic co-operation.
- 4. Report of the International Monetary Fund.
- 5. (a) Report of the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development;
 - (b) Report of the International Finance Corporation;
 - (c) Report of the International Development Association.
- 6. Report of the Committee for Industrial Development.
- 7. Procedures and arrangements for the World Food Programme.
- 8. Natural resources.**
- 9. Travel, transport and communications.
- 10. United Nations Children's Fund.
- 11. Non-governmental organizations.
- 12. Elections.
- 13. Confirmation of members of functional commissions of the Council.
- 14. Financial implications of actions of the Council.
- 15. Consideration of preparations for a meeting of the Council at the ministerial level at the thirty-fourth session.
- 16. Consideration of the provisional agenda for the thirty-fourth session and establishment of dates for opening debate on items.
- 17. Revision of the Agreement between the United Nations and the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization.***
- 18. Creation of the Latin American Institute for Economic and Social Planning.***
- 19. Assistance to the Committee established by resolution 52 (IV) of the Economic Commission for Africa.***

^{*} At its 1187th meeting, on 3 April 1962, the Council decided to delete item 10 from its provisional agenda (Allegations regarding infringements of trade union rights).

^{**} At its 1198th meeting, on 11 April 1962, the Council decided to postpone to its thirty-fourth session consideration of the reports on "New sources of energy and energy development" (E/3577) and "Capital requirements of petroleum exploration and methods of financing" (E/3580 and Corr.1).

^{***} Supplementary item.

RESOLUTIONS ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL DURING ITS THIRTY-THIRD SESSION

ECONOMIC QUESTIONS

866 (XXXIII). Reports of the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the International Finance Corporation and the International Development Association

The Economic and Social Council

Takes note of the reports of the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the International Finance Corporation 2 and the International Development Association.

11911st plenary meeting, 5 April 1962.

867 (XXXIII). Creation of the Latin American Institute for Economic and Social Planning

The Economic and Social Council

Notes with satisfaction the special report submitted by the Committee of the Whole of the Economic Commission for Latin America at its eighth session,⁴ the report of the fourth extraordinary session of the Committee of the Whole ⁵ on the creation of the Latin American Institute for Economic and Social Planning, and resolution 218 (AC.50) of the Committee of the Whole.⁶

11911st plenary meeting, 5 April 1962.

868 (XXXIII). Report of the International Monetary Fund

The Economic and Social Council

Takes note of the report of the International Monetary Fund.⁷

1193rd plenary meeting, 6 April 1962.

870 (XXXIII). Nature, scope and location of the conference on international travel and tourism

The Economic and Social Council,

Bearing in mind the importance of international travel in promoting international understanding and cultural relationships, fostering international trade and furthering economic development, particularly in the developing countries,

Recognizing that in order to encourage the development of international travel it is desirable, wherever possible, to reduce travel formalities and also to standardize such formalities as are deemed necessary,

Considering Article 62, paragraph 4, of the Charter of the United Nations, which provides that the Council may call, in accordance with the rules prescribed by the United Nations, international conferences on matters falling within its competence,

Considering further the rules for the calling of international conferences of States contained in General Assembly resolution 366 (IV) of 3 December 1949,

Having considered the recommendations set forth in the note by the Secretary-General 8 transmitting to the Council the report of the Group of Experts on International Travel and Tourism with whom he consulted in compliance with Council resolution 813 (XXXI) of 27 April 1961,

¹ International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, Sixteenth Annual Report, 1960-1961, Washington, D.C. (E/3570), and document E/3570/Add.1.

² International Finance Corporation, Fifth Annual Report, 1960-1961, Washington, D.C. (E/3571), and document E/3571/Add.1.

³ International Development Association, First Annual Report, 1960-1961, Washington, D.C. (E/3572), and document E/3572/Add.1.

⁴ Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, Thirty-third Session, Annexes, agenda item 19, document E/3582.

⁵ Ibid., document E/3582/Add.1.

⁶ Ibid., Thirty-fourth Session, Supplement No. 4 (E/3581/Rev.1), para. 356.

⁷ International Monetary Fund, Annual Report of the Executive Directors for the Fiscal Year ended April 30, 1961, Washington, D.C. (E/3569), and document E/3569/Add.1.

⁸ Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, Thirty-third Session, Annexes, agenda item 9, document E/3590.

Recalling its previous resolutions concerning the development of international travel — namely, resolutions 563 (XIX) of 31 March 1955, 644 (XXIII) of 26 April 1957, 724 B (XXVIII) of July 1959 and especially 813 (XXXI) of 27 April 1961 requesting the Secretary-General, in consultation if necessary with a group of not more than seven experts, to prepare recommendations concerning the nature, scope and location of the conference on international travel and tourism, including a provisional agenda, and to call the conference as soon as possible, but not later than the autumn of 1963,

Noting that a majority of those Governments which replied to the questionnaire issued by the Secretary-General in August 1960 have expressed themselves in favour of holding a conference on international travel and tourism as early as possible,

Taking into account the useful work already performed in this field at the national, regional and international levels,

- 1. Confirms its decision to call an international technical conference to make recommendations on international travel and tourism;
- 2. Requests the Secretary-General to invite all States Members of the United Nations or members of the specialized agencies to participate in the conference and to include among their representatives individual experts competent in the special subjects to be discussed at the conference;
 - 3. Further requests the Secretary-General:
- (a) To invite the specialized agencies and interested intergovernmental organizations to participate without vote in the deliberations of the conference;
- (b) To invite the interested non-governmental organizations having consultative status with the Council to take part without vote in the conference;
- 4. Decides that the conference should be held in Rome in August-September 1963 for a period of not more than twelve working days;
- 5. Decides further that the provisional agenda for the conference should, subject to paragraphs 5, 6, 8 and 9 of the note by the Secretary-General, be based on the draft provisional agenda submitted by the group of experts in part III of its report, taking into account the reciprocity of tourism;
- 6. Requests the Secretary-General to make the necessary arrangements for the conference, including:
 - (a) The preparation of the necessary documentation;
- (b) The circulation of the note by the Secretary-General, including annex 3 of the report of the Group of Experts, and, after consultation with the International Civil Aviation Organization, a report on the results of the deliberations at the sixth session of that organization's Facilitation Division relating to the facilitation of governmental formalities regarding travel;
- (c) The preparation of provisional rules of procedure for the conference;
 - 9 Ibid.

- 7. Further requests the Secretary-General:
- (a) To circulate the report on the conference to all States Members of the United Nations or members of the specialized agencies, and to the specialized agencies, the interested intergovernmental organizations and the non-governmental organizations in consultative status which were invited to the conference;
- (b) To submit the report on the conference to the Council for consideration at its thirty-seventh session.

1195th plenary meeting, 9 April 1962.

871 (XXXIII). Progress reports of the Committee of Experts for Further Work on the Transport of Dangerous Goods and the Group of Experts on Explosives

The Economic and Social Council,

Recalling its resolutions 645 G (XXIII) of 26 April 1957 and 724 C (XXVIII) of 17 July 1959,

Noting with satisfaction the work on the classification and listing of dangerous goods and their harmonization, and the progress reports of the Committee of Experts for Further Work on the Transport of Dangerous Goods on its second session held in Geneva in September 1961¹⁰ and of the Group of Experts on Explosives on its first session held in Geneva in August 1961, ¹¹ in accordance with Council resolution 724 C (XXVIII),

- 1. Commends the experts for their valuable work;
- 2. Approves the principles established and action taken by the experts as well as the recommendations made in their progress reports;
- 3. Requests the Secretary-General, in the light of the relevant recommendations in such reports:
- (a) To amend the classification and list of principal dangerous goods set out in the 1956 recommendations concerning the classification, listing and labelling of dangerous goods and shipping papers for such goods, 12 in accordance with the recommendations of the experts and with the provisions of Council resolution 724 C (XXVIII), and to circulate the amended text as requested by that resolution;
- (b) To convene the next sessions of the two expert bodies in 1963 with a view to the continuation of their tasks in accordance with the terms of reference outlined in Council resolutions 645 G (XXIII) and 724 C (XXVIII) and to arrange for the Group of Experts on Explosives to report to the Committee of Experts for Further Work on the Transport of Dangerous Goods in time to allow the latter to take account of those recommendations in its own report to the Council;

¹⁰ E/CN.2/CONF.5/3. Transmitted to members of the Economic and Social Council by a note of the Secretary-General (E/3575).

¹¹ E/CN.2/CONF.5/2/Rev.1. Transmitted to members of the Economic and Social Council by a note of the Secretary-General (E/3575).

¹² See *Transport of Dangerous Goods* (United Nations publication, Sales No.: 1956.VIII.1), p. 9.

(c) To draw to the attention of the Governments of Member States, the executive secretaries of the regional economic commissions, in particular the Economic Commission for Europe, the specialized agencies, the International Atomic Energy Agency and other interested international organizations, including those mentioned in the progress reports of the two expert bodies, any aspects of the present resolution and the progress reports which may be of interest to them.

1196th plenary meeting, 10 April 1962.

872 (XXXIII). Report of the Committee for Industrial Development

The Economic and Social Council

- 1. Takes note of the report of the Committee for Industrial Development on its second session; 13
- 2. Endorses the recommendations, the programme of work and priorities set out in the report.

1197th plenary meeting, 10 April 1962.

873 (XXXIII). Industrial development activities of the United Nations system

The Economic and Social Council,

Recalling General Assembly resolution 1712 (XVI) of 19 December 1961,

Recognizing that a high rate of industrial development is a necessary condition for the accelerated economic growth of under-developed countries, within a framework of expanding employment opportunities,

Taking into account the need for greater international action to accelerate the industrial development of less developed countries, in accordance with their over-all development efforts and in the spirit of the United Nations Development Decade, as defined in General Assembly resolution 1710 (XVI) of 19 December 1961,

Further taking into account the establishment in the United Nations Secretariat of the Industrial Development Centre, the work of the Division of Industrial Development and the existence of the Committee for Industrial Development and its inter-sessional working group,

Having considered the report of the Committee for Industrial Development on its second session, 14

1. Requests the Secretary-General to consider urgently the problem of the adequate staffing of the Secretariat for industrial development purposes including the possible appointment, at the level of under-secretary, of

a suitably qualified person as United Nations commissioner for industrial development;

2. Further requests the Secretary-General to appoint an advisory committee of ten experts, selected for their competence and on the basis of an equitable geographical distribution, to examine — in the light of the discussions at the second session of the Committee for Industrial Development, the discussions on industrial development in the General Assembly and in the Economic and Social Council and the relevant resolutions adopted by those organs, as well as of the activities at present being carried out by the United Nations system the question of what further organizational changes might be necessary in order to intensify, concentrate and expedite the United Nations effort for industrial development of the less developed countries, including the advisability of establishing a specialized agency for industrial development, or of strengthening or modifying the existing organizational structure in that field, and to report to the Committee at its third session.

> 1197th plenary meeting, 10 April 1962.

874 (XXXIII). Establishment of an African development bank

The Economic and Social Council,

Recalling resolution 1718 (XVI) on the Economic development of Africa adopted by the General Assembly on 19 December 1961,

Having considered resolution 52 (IV) adopted by the Economic Commission for Africa on 1 March 1962,15

Considering the statement of financial implications prepared by the Secretary-General, 16

- 1. Takes into account the decision of the Economic Commission for Africa, in its resolution 52 (IV), accepting the principle of the establishment of an African development bank and constituting a committee to prepare studies, establish contacts and draft a charter for the proposed bank;
- 2. Endorses the request made to the Executive Secretary of the Commission to convene a conference of ministers to review the report of the committee and to take appropriate steps within the framework of the decision of the Commission on the establishment of the bank;
- 3. Requests the Secretary-General to extend to the Executive Secretary of the Commission the substantive and administrative support to enable him to carry out the decisions contained in resolution 52 (IV) of the Commission;
- 4. Expresses the hope that the General Assembly will approve the requests for financial resources, as may

¹³ Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, Thirty-third Session, Supplement No. 2 (E/3600).

¹⁴ Ibid.

¹⁵ E/3595. See also Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, Thirty-fourth Session, Supplement No. 10 (E/3586), part III.

¹⁶ Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, Thirty-third Session, Annexes, agenda item 20, document E/3595/Add.1.

be required, for the implementation of resolution 52 (IV) of the Commission.

1201st plenary meeting, 12 April 1962.

875 (XXXIII). Question of a declaration on international economic co-operation

The Economic and Social Council,

Considering the revised draft declaration on international economic co-operation submitted by the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, 17

Taking into account the amendments thereto submitted by Afghanistan, ¹⁸ by Denmark, Italy and the United States of America, ¹⁸ and by India, ²⁰ as well as suggestions made in the course of the discussions on the subject during the thirty-third session of the Council, and the proposal by Australia, France, Japan, the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland and Uruguay, ²¹

Bearing in mind the contents of the United Nations Charter and General Assembly resolutions 1421 (XIV) of 5 December 1959, 1514 (XV) of 14 December 1960, 1515 (XV), 1516 (XV), 1519 (XV), 1522 (XV) and 1526 (XV) of 15 December 1960, and 1707 (XVI) and 1710 (XVI) of 19 December 1961,

Believing that adequate ground exists for the formulation of a pronouncement that would be generally acceptable,

Decides that a working group of twelve members nominated by the President be constituted, due regard being given to the necessity of the widest possible geographical representation, to consider the draft declaration, the amendments thereto and the views expressed during the discussions at the thirty-third session of the Council and to prepare a formulation on this subject in the light thereof for submission to the Council at its thirty-fifth session.

1203rd plenary meeting, 13 April 1962; and 1208th plenary meeting,

18 April 1962.

At its 1208th plenary meeting, the Council revised its resolution E/RES/875 (XXXIII) to increase the membership of the working group from eleven to twelve members. The President of the Council nominated the following States as members of the working group: Australia, Brazil, Colombia, Ethiopia, France, India, Italy, Poland, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United States of America and Yugoslavia.

876 (XXXIII). Water Resources Development Centre

The Economic and Social Council,

Having considered the Second Biennial Report of the Water Resources Development Centre, 22

Recalling its resolutions 675 (XXV) of 2 May 1958, 743 A (XXVIII) of 31 July 1959 and 759 (XXIX) of 21 April 1960,

Considering the growing importance of co-ordinated water resources development for developing countries, especially newly independent countries,

Noting the views expressed by the Administrative Committee on Co-ordination on the importance of a strong and independent Centre,

Noting also with appreciation the increasing role which the Centre is called upon to play in relation to the rapid expansion of Special Fund activities in the field of water resources,

Bearing in mind the implications of the United Nations Development Decade and the important role that the Centre may play in this context,

- 1. Takes note with appreciation of the Second Biennial Report of the Water Resources Development Centre;
 - 2. Reaffirms its support of the Centre;
- 3. Notes with satisfaction the proposal of the Secretary-General to review the present arrangements pertaining to the Centre;
- 4. Requests the Administrative Committee on Coordination to include in its report to the Council at its thirty-fourth session concrete proposals on the measures to be taken to that effect;
- 5. Requests the Secretary-General and the executive heads of the specialized agencies concerned to ensure that the Centre is in a position to fulfil its functions, and to lend their co-operation to this end, including the secondment of personnel as appropriate;
- 6. Further requests that proposals for a priority programme of co-ordinated action in the water resources field within the framework of the United Nations Development Decade be drawn up by the Centre as soon as possible with the co-operation of the various organs concerned;
- 7. Looks forward to receiving a report a itts thirty-fifth session containing such proposals.

1204th plenary meeting, 16 April 1962.

877 (XXXIII). Work in the field of non-agricultural resources

The Economic and Social Council,

Having considered the report of the Secretary-General on work being done in the field of non-agricultural resources, 23

¹⁷ Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, Thirty-first Session, Annexes agenda item 6, document E/3467.

¹⁸ Ibid., document E/L.899.

¹⁹ Ibid., Thirty-third Session, Annexes, agenda item 3, document E/L₂937.

²⁰ Ibid., document E/L.942.

²¹ Ibid., document E/L.946.

²² Ibid., Thirty-third Session, Special Supplement (E/3587).

²³ Ibid., Thirty-third Session, Annexes, agenda item 8, document E/3578.

- 1. Notes with approval the nature and scope of the work outlined and the trend of future work indicated in the report;
- 2. Recognizes the increasing importance of the work of the United Nations in that field for the promotion of economic development;
- 3. Recognizes further the importance of continuing study, analysis and dissemination of information on natural resources, to assure the necessary support of technical assistance and Special Fund activities;
- 4. Considers it necessary that the United Nations activities in the field of natural energy resources should be concentrated mainly on providing assistance to less developed countries in developing those sources of energy which are of major importance for their development including industrialization, and for the raising of the standard of living of their populations;
- 5. Requests the Secretary-General to prepare on a biennial basis similar reports for the consideration of the Council.

1204th plenary meeting, 16 April 1962.

878 (XXXIII). Procedures and arrangements for the World Food Programme

The Economic and Social Council,

Recalling General Assembly resolution 1714 (XVI) of 19 December 1961 and resolution 1/61 of the Conference of the Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations on the United Nations/FAO World Food Programme, whereby an Inter-Governmental Committee

was established and instructed to meet early in 1962 to prepare recommendations on the conditions and procedures for the establishment and operation of the Programme,

Having considered the report of the United Nations/ FAO Inter-Governmental Committee ²⁴ and the section of the report of the Council of the Food and Agriculture Organization relating to the World Food Programme, ²⁵

- 1. Records its appreciation of the work done by the United Nations/FAO Inter-Governmental Committee;
- 2. Concurs with the Council of the Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations in approving the procedures and arrangements recommended by the Committee;
- 3. Further agrees that the World Food Programme should be initiated with the minimum delay and, therefore, that the Pledging Conference be convened at the earliest possible date;
- 4. Invites the Governments of States Members of the United Nations and members of the specialized agencies to take early steps to prepare for the Pledging Conference and, in determining their pledges, to bear in mind the necessity of attaining the goal of \$100 million in commodities, services and money;
- 5. Transmits to the Inter-Governmental Committee, for its information and further guidance, the records of the discussion of the matter at its thirty-third session.

1208th plenary meeting, 18 April 1962.

²⁴ E/3594.

25 E/3608.

SOCIAL QUESTIONS

869 (XXXIII). United Nations Children's Fund

The Economic and Social Council

Takes note of the report of the Executive Board of the United Nations Children's Fund on its December 1961 session 26 and of the report of the Executive Director of the Fund.²⁷

1195th plenary meeting, 9 April 1962.

²⁶ Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, Thirty-third Session, Supplement No. 3 (E/3568).

²⁷ Ibid., Supplement No. 3A (E/3591).

OTHER QUESTIONS

864 (XXXIII). Non-governmental organizations: applications and re-applications for consultative status

The Economic and Social Council,

Having considered the report of its Committee on Non-Governmental Organizations,²⁸

1. Decides to grant the requests of the following organizations for category B consultative status:

Centre for Latin American Monetary Studies,

International Council on Jewish Social and Welfare Services,

World Union of Organizations for the Safeguard of Youth,

Afro-Asian Organization for Economic Co-operation;

- 2. Decides to refer the request of the Government of Senegal that the United Towns Organization be granted category B consultative status to its Committee on Non-Governmental Organizations, for consideration and a report thereon to the Council at a later session;
- 3. Decides not to grant the request of the International Council of Jewish Women for category B consultative status.

1189th plenary meeting, 4 April 1962. 865 (XXIII). Revision of the Agreement between the United Nations and the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization

The Economic and Social Council,

Having considered a communication from the Acting Director-General of the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization 29 which envisages an amendment of article II of the Agreement between the United Nations and the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization, so as to eliminate the need for that organization to consult with the Economic and Social Council on applications for membership in that organization of States not Members of the United Nations,

- 1. Approves the deletion of article II of the Agreement between the United Nations and the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization;
- 2. Recommends to the General Assembly that it approve this amendment of the Agreement.

1189th plenary meeting, 4 April 1962.

²⁸ Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, Thirty-third Session, Annexes, agenda item 12, document E/3589.

²⁹ Ibid., agenda item 18, document E/3588.

OTHER DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCIL DURING ITS THIRTY-THIRD SESSION

Election of officers of the Council for 1962

At its 1187th meeting, on 3 April 1962, the Council elected Mr. Jerzy Michalowski (Poland) President of the Council for 1962, Mr. Alfonso Patiño Roselli (Colombia) First Vice-President, and Mr. Muhammad El-Farra (Jordan) Second Vice-President.

Compendium of extracts from resolutions of the General Assembly and the Economic and Social Council involving principles of international economic co-operation

At its 1203rd meeting, on 13 April 1962, the Council decided that the "Compendium of extracts from resolutions of the General Assembly and the Economic and Social Council involving principles of international economic co-operation" (documents E/3202 and Add.1/Rev.1 and Add.2-10) should be brought up to date as soon as possible.

Election of members of the functional commissions of the Council

At its 1206th meeting, on 17 April 1962, the Council elected one-third of the membership of the Commission on Human Rights, the Commission on the Status of Women, the Commission on International Commodity Trade and the Commission on Narcotic Drugs. It also elected one member of the Social Commission.

The composition of these functional commissions for 1963 will therefore be as follows:

SOCIAL COMMISSION

	expires on 31 December
Albania	1964
Austria	1965
Brazil	1963
Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic	1963
Canada	1964
China	1964
Ecuador	1964
Federation of Malaya	1965
Finland	1963
France	1965
Gabon	1965
Iraq	1965
Israel	1964
Sudan	1964

	Term of office expires on 31 December
Tunisia	1964
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics	
United Arab Republic	1963
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern	
Ireland	1963
United States of America	1965
Uruguay	1963
Yugoslavia	1963

COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS

	Term of office expires on 31 December				
Afghanistan	1963				
Canada	1965				
Chile	1965				
China	1963				
Denmark	1965				
Ecuador	1965				
El Salvador	1964				
France	1964				
India	1964				
Italy	1963				
Lebanon	1964				
Liberia	1965				
Netherlands	1963				
Panama	1963				
Philippines	1964				
Poland	1963				
Turkey	1964				
Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic	1965				
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics	1964				
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern					
Iraland	1963				
United States of America	1965				

COMMISSION ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN

	Term of office expires on 31 December
Argentina	1963
Australia	1963
China	1963
Colombia	1965
Czechoslovakia	1963
Finland	1965
France	1965
Ghana	1964
Indonesia	1964
Japan	1963
Mexico	1965

Term of office

Election of members of the Governing Council COMMISSION ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN (continued) of the Special Fund At its 1206th meeting, on 17 April 1962, the Council 31 December elected one-third of the membership of the Governing 1964 Council of the Special Fund; its composition for 1963 Netherlands 1965 Peru will therefore be as follows: Term of office 1963 Philippines expires on 31 December 1965 Poland 1965 Sierra Leone 1964 Brazil 1964 1965 Spain Canada 1964 Union of Soviet Socialist Republics 1964 France 1963 1963 United Arab Republic Ghana United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern 1963 Guatemala 1964 1964 Ireland Indonesia 1964 1963 United States of America Italy 1965 Japan 1964 COMMISSION ON INTERNATIONAL COMMODITY TRADE Mexico 1963 Netherlands Term of office 1965 Philippines expires on 31 December 1965 Poland 1963 1964 Senegal Australia 1963 1964 Sweden Belgium Union of Soviet Socialist Republics 1965 1965 Brazil United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern 1963 Bulgaria 1964 1963 Ceylon Ireland 1964 1964 United States of America Ecuador 1965 1963 Uruguay Federation of Malaya France 1964 Election of six additional members of the Technical 1965 Greece 1963 Ivory Coast Assistance Committee 1964 Madagascar At its 1207th meeting, on 17 April 1962, pursuant to 1964 Mali its resolution 863 (XXXII), the Council elected six 1963 New Zealand additional members of the Technical Assistance Com-1964 Peru mittee. The composition for 1963 will therefore be as 1965 Romania 1963 Sweden Term of office expires on 31 December follows: 1965 Thailand Union of Soviet Socialist Republics 1965 1963 Afghanistan United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern 1965 1964 Australia Ireland 1962 Brazil 1963 United States of America 1962 China 1965 Uruguay 1964 Colombia 1962 Czechoslovakia COMMISSION ON NARCOTIC DRUGS 1962 Denmark Term of office 1963 El Salvador expires on 31 December 1963 Ethiopia 1963 France 1964 Brazil 1963 Greece 1964 Canada 1964 India 1963 China 1963 1965 Federal Republic of Germany 1963 Israel 1964 France 1963 Italy 1965 Hungary 1962 Japan 1963 India 1963 Jordan 1965 Iran 1963 Netherlands 1963 Japan 1963 New Zealand 1965 Mexico 1962 Poland 1965 Morocco 1964 Senegal 1964 Peru 1962 Sudan 1963 Poland 1962 Switzerland 1965 Republic of Korea Union of Soviet Socialist Republics 1962 1964 Switzerland 1962 United Arab Republic 1963 Turkey United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern 1963 Union of Soviet Socialist Republics 1962 Ireland United Arab Republic 1965 1964 United States of America United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern

1963

1964

1964

Ireland

United States of America

Yugoslavia

1962

1963

1964

Upper Volta

Uruguay

Yugoslavia

Election of members of the Executive Board of the United Nations Children's Fund

At its 1207th meeting, on 17 April 1962, the Council elected one-third of the membership of the Executive Board of the United Nations Children's Fund. The composition of the Board for 1963 will therefore be as follows:

Term of office

	expires on 31 Decembe
Afghanistan	1963
Brazil	1963
Bulgaria	1964
Canada	1964
Chile	1964
China	1963
Dominican Republic	1965
El Salvador	1963
Federal Republic of Germany	1964
France	1963
India	1964
Israel	1964
Italy	1964
Japan	1963
Mexico	1965
Nigeria	1964
Pakistan	1964
Philippines	1965
Poland	1963
Senegal	1965
Spain	1965
Sudan	1965
Sweden	1965
Switzerland	1965
Tunisia	1963
Turkey	1965
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics	1963
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern	
Ireland	1965
United States of America	1963
Uruguay	1964

Confirmation of members of the functional commissions of the Council

At its 1207th meeting, on 17 April 1962, the Council confirmed the following representatives of members of the functional commissions nominated by their Governments:

STATISTICAL COMMISSION

Mr. Keith McRae Archer (Australia)

Mr. Claude Gruson (France)

Mr. Yuzo Morita (Japan)

Mr. Gassim Ahmed Mousa (Sudan)

Mr. Valentin Fedorovich Burlin (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic)

Mr. Raymond T. Bowman (United States of America)

POPULATION COMMISSION

Mr. Vasilios Valaoras (Greece)

Mr. Ansley Johnson Coale (United States of America)

SOCIAL COMMISSION

Mr. Vasily Ivanovich Luzgin (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic)

Mr. Gunapala Piyasena Malalasekera (Ceylon)

Mr. Mohamed Ennaceur (Tunisia)

Mr. George Ernest Haynes (United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland)

COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS

Mr. Antonio Alvarez Vidaurre (El Salvador)

Mr. Guiseppe Sperduti (Italy)

Mr. M. Shahabuddin (Pakistan)

Mr. Jacinto Castel Borja (Philippines)

Mr. Petr Emelyanovich Nedbailo (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic)

COMMISSION ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN

Mrs. Marcela Susana Gatica de Vilchez (Argentina)

Miss Emelia Aryee (Ghana)

Mrs. Zafardochte Ardalan (Iran)

Miss Aurora Huber Robert (Spain)

Mrs. Aziza Hussein (United Arab Republic)

Establishment of a committee to consider candidates for election to the Permanent Central Opium Board

At its 1207th meeting, on 17 April 1962, pursuant to its decision taken its at 1184th meeting on 21 December 1961, the Council established a committee to assist it in considering candidates for election to the Permanent Central Opium Board. The representatives of the following countries were nominated to serve on the committee: Australia, El Salvador, Ethiopia, India, Italy, Japan and Poland.

Date of the meeting of the Technical Assistance Committee

At its 1206th meeting, on 17 April 1962, the Council decided that the Technical Assistance Committee should convene on 25 June 1962.

Provisional agenda for the thirty-fourth session

At its 1206th meeting, on 17 April 1962, the Council decided to approve as its provisional agenda for the thirty-fourth session the items contained in documents

E/3585 and Add.1 with the exception of item 9, "World Food Programme", and with the inclusion of an item entitled "Natural resources".

Question of representation at the thirty-fourth session of the Council

The Council decided to request the Secretary-General to invite the attention of States members of the Council to the importance of the questions on the agenda of

its thirty-fourth session and to convey the hope of the Council that Member States will be represented at the session at a high level.

Financial implications of actions of the Council

At its 1208th meeting, on 18 April 1962, the Council took note of the financial implications of the decisions taken at its thirty-third session.³⁰

³⁰ Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, Thirty-third session, Annexes, agenda item 15, document E/3609.

CHECK LIST OF RESOLUTIONS

NOTE. — The resolutions of the Economic and Social Council are numbered in the order of their adoption. This check list includes all the resolutions adopted by the Council during its thirty-third session.

Resolution No.	Title	Item	Date of adoption	Page
864 (XXXIII)	Non-governmental organizations: applications and re-applications for consultative status	12	4 April 1962	6
865 (XXXIII)	Revision of the Agreement between the United Nations and the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization	18	4 April 1962	6
866 (XXXIII)	Reports of the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the International Finance Corporation and the International Development Association	5	5 April 1962	1
867 (XXXIII)	Creation of the Latin American Institute for Economic and Social Planning	19	5 April 1962	1
868 (XXXIII)	Report of the International Monetary Fund	4	6 April 1962	1
869 (XXXIII)	United Nations Children's Fund	11	9 April 1962	5
870 (XXXIII)	Nature, scope and location of the conference on international travel and tourism	9	9 April 1962	1
871 (XXXIII)	Progress reports of the Committee of Experts for Further Work on the Transport of Dangerous Goods, and the Group of Experts on Explosives	9	10 April 1962	2
872 (XXXIII)	Report of the Committee for Industrial Development	6	10 April 1962	3
873 (XXXIII)	Industrial development activities of the United Nations system	6	10 April 1962	3
874 (XXXIII)	Establishment of an African development bank	20	12 April 1962	3
875 (XXXIII)	Question of a declaration on international economic co-operation	3	13 April 1962 and 16 April 1962	4
876 (XXXIII)	Water Resources Development Centre	8	16 April 1962	4
877 (XXXIII)	Work in the field of non-agricultural resources	8	16 April 1962	4
878 (XXXIII)	Procedures and arrangements for the World Food Programme	7	18 April 1962	5

-			